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Empowering Lives and Enhancing Care for People with Parkinson

To promote awareness and understanding of Parkinson
and related disorders by educating patients, caregivers
and their communities, and by supporting them holistically
in their journey with Parkinson.

To disseminate knowledge and information which promote better
care and management of Parkinson through books, websites,
talks and public forums. To provide therapeutic programmes and
services that help patients sustain their functions and total wellbeing. To establish a social and community network of support
for patients and caregivers through support groups, healthcare
training and social events.

ABOUT PARKINSON SOCIETY SINGAPORE
Parkinson Society Singapore (PSS) was formed on 16
December 1996 by a group of doctors and caregivers
to help people living with Parkinson. The Society was
registered as a charity on 28 January 2000 and is a
member of National Council of Social Service (NCSS).
Singapore’s first community-based Parkinson Centre,
set up by PSS, provides People with Parkinson (PwP)
and their caregivers with the much needed support
beyond those provided in hospitals. Activities and
programmes held at the Centre are specially designed
to address the needs of PwP, such as enhancing their
mobility, dexterity, posture, verbal communications as
well as cognitive functioning. These include mobility

enhancement programmes such as physiotherapy,
occupational therapy, Tai Chi and dance therapy;
voice programmes such as group singing classes
and speech therapy; dexterity programmes such as
Chinese calligraphy, origami and art & craft sessions;
cognitive stimulation programmes such as Emotional
Freedom Technique.
PSS also organises social and recreational activities,
annual public forums, and works closely with patient
and caregiver support groups in various hospitals. The
Society also publishes newsletters and books, as well
as organises outreach activities to raise the awareness
of Parkinson.
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President’s
Message

With the support of the Parkinson community, PSS
staff and board, 2019 has been a fruitful year for the
Society with the following highlights:
•		A record turnout of more than 700 at our annual
outreach event “Move To Beat Parkinson” at the Toa
Payoh HDB Hub with the Health Minister Mr Gan Kim
Yong as our Guest-of-Honour;
• Our second annual “Empowering
Parkinson in Action” bootcamp received
overwhelming response with a specially
tailored programme for Parkinson
warriors with moderate or severe
symptoms and we had to turn some
away due to space constraints at the
new Safra Toa Payoh venue;
• Our inaugural participation in the Standard
Chartered Singapore Marathon 2019 was
an extraordinary success in many ways. The
team of nine Parkinson warriors took up the
5km challenge and all received their
Finisher’s Medals for completing well
within the 75 minutes time limit!
•		Our community training
collaboration with our valued
partner, St Luke’s ElderCare,
bore heartening results
– the number of centres
we have trained to offer
Parkinson physiotherapy
group exercise classes
has increased from 14 to
21! This makes care for
People with Parkinson more
accessible.
The above events were held
in addition to our core therapy
programmes - physiotherapy,
occupational therapy, speech
therapy and other therapeutic
and support programmes for
people living with Parkinson and
their caregivers.

In 2019, the staff and board has engaged the authorities
and the Bishan grassroots leaders to seek approval to
expand our Bishan Centre so as to better serve the
Parkinson community. We are glad to report that we
have received approval in August 2020 to proceed
with our extension plans. The extension of our Centre
will enable PSS to enlarge our activity area to provide
more therapeutic and support programmes for our
beneficiaries.
With the COVID-19 outbreak in 2020, PSS
has been thrusted into unprecedented
times. Adjustments had to be made
to minimise disruption to our service
delivery and operations in a rapidly
evolving pandemic. As we journey
through this year and beyond, let’s
rally together as a Parkinson community
to support one another and encourage
each other on. Let’s stay active,
mentally and physically.
Let’s stay safe and
adhere to all the
health advisories.
I would like to
thank our donors,
partners, sponsors,
volunteers, fellow
board members
and staff for your
generous giving
and contributions.
We look forward to
your continued strong
support as we seek to
strengthen and grow the
Society to better empower
the Parkinson community.
Prof Louis Tan
President
Parkinson Society Singapore
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I am pleased to present my first report as the President of the Parkinson Society
Singapore (PSS) on behalf of the PSS board and staff. The theme “Extraordinary,
Every Day” was chosen for this Annual Report to recognise and celebrate
extraordinary efforts of our Parkinson warriors to meet the daily challenges of living
with Parkinson. We celebrate their lives, cheer their efforts, and pledge to support
them as best as we can in their journey with Parkinson.

Board
Members
Ex tra ord i n a r y, Ever y Da y
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President

Vice President

Prof Louis Tan

Mr Marcus Lam

Senior Consultant, Neurology &
Deputy Director, Research
National Neuroscience Institute

Secretary

Ms Neo Lay Tin

Former Executive Director
Children’s Cancer Foundation

Dr Tan Siok Bee

Deputy Director, Nursing (APN)
Singapore General Hospital

Assurance Leader
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Treasurer

Mr Hung Kwang Hou
Former Deputy Chairman
Lincoln Minerals

Mr Melvyn Chiang

Former Administrator,
Blood Service Group
Health Sciences Authority

Assistant Treasurer

Ms Theresa Goh

Chief Financial Officer
The Toa Reinsurance Company
(Singapore Branch)

Dr Dawn Tan

Senior Principal Physiotherapist
Singapore General Hospital

(6 Meetings)

PRESIDENT
Prof Louis Tan - 5/6
VICE PRESIDENT
Mr Marcus Lam - 2/6
SECRETARY
Ms Neo Lay Tin - 4/6

Dr Tay Kay Yaw

Senior Consultant, Neurology
National Neuroscience Institute

Ms Li Wei

Ms Christine Kang

Advanced Practice Nurse
& Senior Nurse Clinician
National Neuroscience Institute

Director, Group Finance
Mapletree Investments

TREASURER
Mr Hung Kwang Hou - 5/6
ASSISTANT TREASURER
Ms Theresa Goh - 5/6
BOARD MEMBERS
Dr Tan Siok Bee - 5/6
Mr Melvyn Chiang - 2/6
Dr Dawn Tan - 3/6
Dr Tay Kay Yaw - 3/6
Ms Li Wei - 5/6
Ms Christine Kang - 1/6
Dr Tan Hooi Hwa - 5/6
Dr Tan Boon Wan - 5/6
Ms Sim Peck San - 4/6
Dr Xu Zheyu* - 3/4
*Joined in May 2019

ADVISOR
Ms Julie Lau - 6/6

Dr Tan Hooi Hwa

Doctor
The Ming Clinic
Camden Medical Centre

Dr Xu Zheyu

Consultant Neurologist
National Neuroscience Institute

Dr Tan Boon Wan

Former MP for Ang Mo Kio GRC &
Former Assoc Prof
NUS School of Business (2006)

Ms Sim Peck San

Director, Internal Audit
Infineon Technologies Asia Pacific

Advisor

Ms Julie Lau

Former General Manager
Helukabel Singapore

Reasons for Retaining Board
Members who have served for more
than 10 consecutive years :
1.

Prof Louis Tan : Dr Tan provides
invaluable inputs and medical expertise
in achieving the best outcomes for
Parkinson patients.

2.

Ms Neo Lay Tin : Lay Tin provides
guidance in public communications
and community outreach, which are
key factors in raising the awareness of
Parkinson and support for the cause.

3.

Dr Tan Siok Bee : Dr Tan chairs
the Programme Committee and
has, through the years, helped our
Parkinson members lead more
meaningful and active lives.

4.

Mr Melvyn Chiang : As a Parkinson
patient himself, Melvyn’s sharing of his
experiences has helped the Society to
stay relevant and pro-active in meeting
the needs of the Parkinson community.

5.

Ms Theresa Goh : As a senior finance
professional, Theresa provides
invaluable inputs and guidance as
Assistant Treasurer and a member
of the Finance Committee, ensuring
adherence to best practices and the
code of governance for charities.
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Attendance
At Board Meetings
In 2019

April
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Year In Review

January
26

12-14

6th Asian and Oceanian Parkinson’s
Disease and Movement Disorders
Congress

13

Tulipmania @ Gardens by the Bay
with NUS Community Service Club

27

Move to Beat Parkinson 2019

Youthful Parkinson Circle (YPC) –
Managing & Coping in Parkinson

May
February
16

21

Chinese New Year Reunion

Life in Balance – Emotional Freedom
Technique

11

Youthful Parkinson Circle – Importance of
Physical Activities
PSSM Speech & Movement Group

18-19

NNI Brain Awareness Week

25

Annual General Meeting

CaREhab 2019 Pre-Congress
Workshop

March
9

4

Caregivers’ Workshop – Care for People with Parkinson who
have undergone Deep Brain Stimulation
Youthful Parkinson Circle – Medication Management
PSSM Speech & Movement Group

20

Origami Tulips Craft Session with NUS Community Service Club

23

Life in Balance – Emotional Freedom Technique

June
1

Community Training Workshop

19

Games Hour Session 1 with
Project Axon

29

Enliven Session/Bon Appetit
with Project Novo

July
Games Hour Session 2 with Project Axon

13

Caregivers’ Workshop – Meal Preparation
for Patients with Parkinson

27

Life in Balance – Emotional Freedom
Technique

October
12

07

Youthful Parkinson Circle (YPC) –
Emotional Well-Being

Youthful Parkinson Circle – Dealing
with Speech & Swallowing Changes
PSSM Speech & Movement Group

29

Run for Parkinson’s by Project Novo

30

Batik Painting Workshop

November
Music Therapy Workshop

30

Besting Parkinson’s Disease: Public
Forum 2019
Youthful Parkinson Circle (YPC) –
Nutrition Management

August
24

2

PSSM Speech & Movement Group

Empowering Parkinson in Action
Bootcamp

September
7

Life in Balance – Emotional Freedom
Technique

21

Caregivers’ Workshop – Managing
Swallowing & Speech Dysfunction

29

PSSM Speech & Movement Group

December
1

I Run For Parkinson @Standard Chartered
Singapore Marathon

14

Caregivers’ Workshop – Managing
Parkinson’s Medications and Associated
Interactions
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Our 10th Parkinson
Star Awards Winners
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Each year, we honour the unsung heroes amidst the Parkinson community. Our
10th Parkinson Star Awards winners were three outstanding individuals who were
nominated for their perseverance, courage and strength in their Parkinson journey.
They received their awards from the Guest-of-Honour, Mr Gan Kim Yong, Minister for
Health at “Move To Beat Parkinson 2019” on 27 April 2019 at Toa Payoh HDB Hub.

Mr Johnson See
Prize Winner

Mr See, 65, was diagnosed with Parkinson in 2015. In spite of his
condition, Mr See leads a very active life, and has inspired fellow
Parkinson warriors and many others around him. Mountain trekking,
swimming and scuba diving, are some of the outdoor activities he
continues to do.
The strong-willed Mr See has conquered mountains in Indonesia,
Taiwan, Japan and more, even after his Parkinson diagnosis. His most
recent feat was on 12 April 2019 when he overcame challenges to
reach the Mount Everest Base Camp in Nepal (5,364m).
His perseverance and courage have helped him build a more resilient
character. Having strong supportive family members and friends has
also enabled him to continue his Parkinson journey more confidently.
Ever willing to share his knowledge and experiences with fellow
Parkinson warriors, Mr See had delivered motivational talks at
various Parkinson Support Group sessions and Public Forums. He
has also been actively involved in research studies on Parkinson as a
participant. His courageous Parkinson journey is a shining example
that inspires!

Mdm Ang Bee Hwa
Prize Winner

Mdm Ang Bee Hwa, 71, has been caring for her younger sister, Mdm
Ang Swee Hwa, 70, since the latter was diagnosed with Parkinson in
2007. Mdm Swee Hwa weighed only 35kg then and was wheelchairbound.
The caregiving journey is never an easy one and having a care
recipient who has several medical conditions can be especially
daunting. Mdm Swee Hwa has low blood pressure and she
underwent an open-heart surgery in 2015.
Mdm Bee Hwa opted for early retirement from her nursing job to take
care of her sister. Not only does she help her sister with the activities
of daily living, she also takes charge of her diet, helps her with
exercises and accompanies her for medical appointments.
Mdm Bee Hwa does all these while not being in the best of health
herself. Weighing only 40kg, she has osteoporosis and chronic back
pain. Pushing her sister on the wheelchair further aggravates her
back pain. Yet, she continues the caregiving with a huge sense of
responsibility and love.
To her sister, Mdm Bee Hwa is “an angel who helps me stand on my
feet when my wings have trouble remembering how to fly... I owe my
life to her.”

Mdm Rebecca Fong

Mdm Fong, 72, was diagnosed with Parkinson in 1997. She was
then managing a successful manufacturing factory producing local
pastries.
Prize Winner

Mdm Fong has inspired many with her positive “can-do” attitude as
well her determination to lead an active life despite her Parkinson
condition. A regular at the Parkinson Centre, she strives to stay active
by taking physiotherapy and dance classes, Tai Chi, Ukulele and
more.
The generous Mdm Fong loves to bring joy to others too with
thoughtful gestures like getting birthday cakes for fellow Parkinson
warriors in her classes and supporting the Society’s fundraising
activities.
Despite having undergone Deep Brain Stimulation surgery and
wearing a pacemaker-like device in her body, Mdm Fong has no
complaints. Her positive coping attitude has won the admiration of
fellow Parkinson warriors. To quote a former Parkinson Star Awards
winner – “Rebecca’s ability to cope and survive Parkinson gives
Parkinson warriors much hope!”

Ex tra ord i n a r y, Ever y Da y

09

“I Run For Parkinson”
- The Extraordinary Challenge
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Team Parkinson
Conquered Singapore
Marathon 2019!
5km within 75 minutes.
To many, that may
seem very achievable
by running or brisk
walking.
But for People with
Parkinson (PwP),
it seems
insurmountable.

Yet, when PSS suggested forming a team to
participate in the Standard Chartered Singapore
Marathon 2019’s 5km category, it didn’t take too long
to “recruit” nine brave and determined PSS Parkinson
Warriors to challenge themselves.
Team Parkinson warriors included Ms Coco Kurata; Ms Eling
Teow; Ms Doris Chow; Ms Liddy Pong; Ms Margaret Wan;
Mr BK Pang; Mr CK Tham; Mr KH Tan and Mr TK Chua.
The inaugural “I Run For Parkinson” initiative saw how each
Parkinson Warrior took things in their stride despite the short
lead time of less than two months to the actual race on 1
December 2019. From personal trainings, team trainings to
recce trips along the actual race route – Team Parkinson did
the things that most runners do preparing for races.

Ex tra ord i n a r y, Ever y Da y
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Source: Shin Min Daily News

Except that they have one more extraordinary challenge – to adjust their medication intake in the best
simulation possible of the actual day race timings. This was to ensure that they wouldn’t run into their “off”
time by avoiding the wearing-off effects of their medication which would render them relatively less
functional in terms of mobility.
PSS salutes Team Parkinson for conquering the seemingly fearsome and impossible feat, especially when
there was no way the team could have anticipated the extra 1.5km walk to the Starting Point due to road
closures. Each Warrior soldiered on in spite of the sweltering heat, humidity, and the anxiety of walking with a
huge crowd. Each fought against the effects of their medication wearing off especially in the final 1km lap. All
completed well within 66 minutes, with the first Warrior clocking in at 50:24 minutes and two other Warriors
right behind him - well done, Mr Chua, Mr Tan and Ms Teow!
Team Parkinson gained more than the Singapore Marathon Finisher’s medals: nothing compares to the
strong rapport and camaraderie now binding the Warriors and their loved ones together; and the unique
experience of making what seemed impossible, POSSIBLE. And they have inspired many with their “Never
Say Die” attitude. To borrow a quote from Mr Tham: “We have Parkinson, but Parkinson does not have us!”

MESSAGES FROM
TEAM PARKINSON
Ex tra ord i n a r y, Ever y Da y
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“I still feel the pain from my knee cap operations done three years ago. But I would like to test
how far I can go – a personal challenge for myself.
I feel very great to have completed the race! The experience has helped me in my Parkinson
journey – whenever I feel down, I just think about crossing the finishing line. I will definitely
encourage others to join us at the next opportunity. Well done, PSS!”

– Mr BK Pang

“My greatest takeaways from this experience
are that preparation leads to achievement,
and the importance of teamwork. One
cannot achieve much on our own, but it
works wonders in a group. I will take on
such challenges again! Thank you, PSS for
organising this event – it really brings up the
spirit of the PSS members!”
– Ms Doris Chow

“I exercise and brisk walk daily but usually in
the parks where there are trees and shades.
This was my first time participating in an
organised running event and I was excited,
just a bit worried about the heat.
I am very happy that I could complete the
5km challenge and happier to see all my
team mates completing too – it is very
encouraging! I’m really looking forward to the
end of COVID-19 pandemic and returning to
PSS soon to continue with my usual activities.
I also look forward to another race or similar
events as this marathon.
Thank you, PSS – your love and dedication
bring hope and confidence to PwP!”

– Mr KH Tan

“It was a wonderful and memorable
experience for all of us from the
preparation to crossing the finishing line.
It has never dawned on me that I would be
able to join a marathon event in my 60s
– a real test of stamina, physical abilities
and perseverance. My toes were twisted
somehow along the way and painful. It
was the team spirit of us fighting PD
together and cheering one another on
that kept me going. I felt so happy and
proud to receive the Finisher’s medal as
a confirmation of my achievement! I’d like
to thank PSS for this opportunity, the SGH
volunteers as well as PSS staff for all the
encouragement, hardwork in organising
and support.”

– Ms Liddy Pong

“My concern was how fast I could
complete the 5km, and the only way to
prepare was to practise, practise and
practise. It was fun to be able to exercise
together and motivate each other towards
the same goal, not to see who came in
first but to complete the 5km together.
Feels good that when all of us completed
the race together! We also got to know
each other better, and best of all, PSS
gave us a personalised cushion after the
event for us to remember this experience
by!”
- Ms Eling Teow

“My greatest gain was the most positive
feeling of a personal achievement at a
public event in recent times. I’ve tried
to back out several times, having no
confidence in achieving the goal.
Remaining positive by trusting in God
was key in my final finish.
Our participation in the event was well
planned and organised by PSS – the
team with a heart and love for Parkinson
Warriors. The love and care you have
shown us is greatly appreciated and
synergised the individual efforts of the
participants.”

“It was a great and satisfying feeling when I
managed to complete the 5km walk within the
cut-off time, especially since it was my first
time at such a walk. And I was very happy
when I managed to do better on the actual day
and came in first in our group – I ran on my last
lap!
The experience has given me a morale booster,
that I can achieve my goal even with Parkinson.
I would certainly encourage others to join in.
We are grateful to PSS for their help and
encouragement in organising trial runs to push
us to achieve our goals. Because they believed
in us, it gave us the confidence and courage to
challenge ourselves.”

– Mr TK Chua

– Mr CK Tham

“Even though I was so exhausted and needed medical attention after the race, I felt
so great completing the full distance. I never thought I could complete within the
cut-off time, but with a lot of prior practice and help and assistance from people
around me, I was able to accomplish. Crossing the finishing line has certainly given
me confidence.
I’m so grateful to PSS for making this possible – without the tireless effort of the
staff, caring and cheering our team not just during the race but throughout our
preparation, this accomplishment would not have happened.”

– Ms Coco Kurata

“My greatest takeaways were the sense of achievement, enhanced self-confidence and the
bonding and cementing of friendship with fellow team members. Before the marathon, I wasn’t
sure if I could complete the 5km within the given time. I was jubilant and feeling grateful upon
crossing the finishing line.
It confirmed my belief that positive thinking strengthens me to fight and delay the progression of
Parkinson. I will definitely encourage others to join when the next opportunity arises.
Don’t be afraid of not achieving the goal – the experience is rewarding enough!”

– Ms Margaret Wan
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Programmes &
Services
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Therapeutic Programmes

PSS offers a wide range of customised programmes that cater to the various needs of People with
Parkinson (PwP) and related disorders. Our programmes and services are heavily subsidised, especially
for PSS members. Our core programme is physiotherapy, and class sizes at the Parkinson Centre (Bishan)
are kept small to ensure each PwP gets the individual attention and care they need.
In a collaborative effort, PSS together with National Neuroscience Institute (NNI), provide training to the
staff of our community partner, St Luke’s ElderCare (SLEC) since 2014 to better meet the needs of
PwP. Today, a total of 21 SLEC centres islandwide offer tailor-made Parkinson physiotherapy classes to
PwP at locations nearer to their homes. This decentralization of services to different parts of Singapore
has resulted in greater convenience and accessibility for participants who benefitted from savings in
transport costs and shorter travelling time.
The Parkinson Centre provides one-stop services for PwP and their caregivers, including access to
information and skills which enable them to cope with their condition and improve their quality of life.

Movement

Voice

Dexterity

Cognitive-

Social Support

Training

Training

Training

Stimulation

& Integration

Training
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• Chinese
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• Caregivers’

– Emotional

Workshop

• Moving Well
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– Group
Physiotherapy
Exercise
• Active Kickboxing
• Dance Therapy

• Karaoke @
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Therapy)
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• Tai Chi
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• Ukulele
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Technique
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Movement
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• Hospital
Support
Groups
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Moving Well with Parkinson –
Group Physiotherapy Exercise

PwP often experience slowness and movement difficulties, especially in walking and carrying
out daily tasks. Physiotherapy aims to enhance one’s physical functioning and abilities,
strengthen muscles, increase joint mobility and build up general fitness and health.
PSS offers three categories of physiotherapy classes: strong foundation, intermediate and
advanced, to cater to the different mobility levels of PwP. Each course comprises 12 onehour sessions. PwP who wish to take up physiotherapy classes are required to go through an
assessment test with our physiotherapist before being placed in a class best suited to them.
The progress of each participant will be closely monitored after each session and changes
will be made according to their needs.
Class Type
Strong Foundation Mobility
Intermediate Mobility
Advanced Mobility

Sessions conducted in 2019

Participants

272
414
188

176
285
157

Movement
Training
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Active Kickboxing

Introduced in 2017, our Active Kickboxing classes soon became one of the most popular
programmes among PSS members. By 2019, we had to open up an additional class to meet
the rising demand of PwP for this sport. Participants jab and uppercut their way to better
fitness through this non-combative form of kickboxing that combines hand-eye coordination,
core control and cathartic moves for balanced body strength, cardio-respiratory endurance,
flexibility, balance and stress relief.
Class Type

Sessions conducted in 2019

Participants

Beginner

12

16

Advanced

41

75

Dance Therapy
Dance Therapy at PSS is specially designed
to help PwP address movement-related
challenges associated with Parkinson. Our
dance instructor fuses elements of ballet with
large expansive dance moves. Participants
also practise moving at different speeds to
address the slowness of movement. They
also turn and move in tight spaces which are
known to trigger ‘freezing’ and use music as
cues to facilitate movement.
The programme uses fundamental dance movement patterns to help PwP increase their
range of motion, strengthen muscles to improve their overall functional mobility, balance and
gait. The free movement also instils confidence in participants as it connects both the mind
and body, allowing them to regain the freedom of expression.
Sessions conducted in 2019

Participants

44

74

Movement
Training
Yoga
Apart from reducing stress and
enhancing relaxation of the mind
and body, the Yoga classes at
PSS aim to help PwP improve
their muscle fluidity, functional
mobility and blood circulation.
The
classes
are
taught
progressively and are adapted
according to the physical
condition of the individual, so
that they can practise at their
own pace. Done either on a
yoga mat or in seated positions,
participants of varying mobility
levels can practise yoga.
Sessions conducted in 2019

Participants

38

103

Tai Chi
An ancient martial art, Tai Chi involves gentle
physical exercise practised with mindfulness
and allows PwP to become more aware of
their body and integration of each part of the
body with the whole.
Through steady controlled physical postures,
participants reap benefits such as a stronger
body, improved blood circulation, better
balance and coordination, and increased
flexibility in the joints and spine.
The flowing movements of Tai Chi help in overcoming muscle tightness and stiffness, which
are common symptoms in Parkinson. Here at PSS, both standing and sitting versions of Tai
Chi classes are offered to cater to the different mobility levels of participants.
Class Type

Sessions conducted in 2019

Participants

Sitting Tai Chi

36

44

Standing Tai Chi

45

60

Ex tra ord i n a r y, Ever y Da y
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Voice
Training
Ex tra ord i n a r y, Ever y Da y

18

Do Re Mi
PwP may experience changes to their
speech and voice that progressively worsen
as their Parkinson condition advances. The
weakened muscles in the face, mouth and
throat often lead to slurred speech, reduced
vocal volume or hoarseness.
Our Do Re Mi voice training programme
encourages participants to practise their
singing in a karaoke setting. Participants take
turns to perform songs they learn together
as a class. Under the guidance of our vocal trainer, participants learn to gradually condition
their vocal cords and correct their diction and pronunciation. They also learn the difference
between pitch, tone, rhythm and notes.
Studies have found significant improvements in speech clarity and voice acoustics after
therapy involving singing. Parkinson singing groups worldwide have also observed clear
improvements in speech and voice after participation in regular singing sessions. Apart
from being a vocal exercise, singing also relieves stress and boosts self-esteem and
confidence.
Sessions conducted in 2019

Participants

42

48

Karaoke @ YMCA
A collaboration with the International Y’s
Men Club of Singapore (Alpha Chapter) –
the service arm of YMCA Singapore, the
monthly social karaoke sessions at the
YMCA International House in Orchard have
its own loyal following.
PwP, together with their caregivers and
loved ones, bond with fellow PwP as they
make song requests and cheer each other
on, singing their favourite songs and exercising their vocal muscles. The bonding amidst a
relaxed and fun environment brings much joy to the participants.
Sessions conducted in 2019

Participants

10

86

Voice
Training
Ex tra ord i n a r y, Ever y Da y
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Speak L.I.F.E. (Speech Therapy)

PSS offers Speech Therapy through Speak L.I.F.E, which aims to combat speech changes
through speech exercises, group activities, and home practices, all in a fun and positive
environment. Participants are empowered with voice therapy techniques to achieve optimal
communication.
Sessions conducted in 2019

Participants

20

32

Speech & Movement Group
2019 saw more speech therapy
classes to cater to PwP who
can only attend on weekends.
A series of Speech & Movement
Group sessions were held
at our Centre. Conducted in
small groups, the series were
based on the Lee Silverman
Voice Technique (LSVT) LOUD
and LSVT BIG exercises. PwP
practised these techniques
to improve their speech and
movement
simultaneously
through a series of targeted
exercises.
Sessions conducted in 2019
4

Participants
20

Dexterity
Training
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Chinese Calligraphy
Parkinson can cause the slowing of movement
and feelings of muscle stiffness in the hands and
fingers. Practising Chinese calligraphy helps PwP
in managing micrographia, a common symptom
of Parkinson that causes handwriting to become
smaller, cramped and illegible.
Using a paint brush requires participants to exhibit
fine control over seemingly flowing brush strokes.
Participants also learn to breathe naturally and
eliminate all distractions while focusing on their
brush strokes.
The Chinese calligraphy classes are taught progressively and adapted to the learning curve
of each individual.
Sessions conducted in 2019

Participants

50

41

Ukulele
Introduced in 2018, Ukulele returned for two
runs in 2019 due to popular demand. A good
instrument for PwP due to its small size, the
Ukulele is relatively easy to learn.
Participants would first learn individual chords
before playing songs together as a class.
Participants also enjoyed singing along as they
played.
Benefits of playing Ukulele include stress relief,
improved coordination, memory and mood.
Sessions conducted in 2019

Participants

16

19

Cognitive-Stimulation
Training
Life in Balance – Emotional Freedom Technique
Emotional Freedom Technique (EFT) is
a tapping technique clinically proven to
lower stress, anxiety, physical pain, tension,
cravings, negativity, fears, trauma, limiting
beliefs and blocks.
Combining the use of ancient acupuncture
(without needles) and modern psychology
to release unhealthy emotions while
facilitating freedom from negative thoughts and patterns, EFT helps participants achieve
better health and happiness.
The evidence-based technique has more than 100 papers published in peer-reviewed
medical and psychology journals, including dozens of clinical trials – demonstrating that EFT
is effective for phobias, anxiety, depression, post-traumatic stress disorder, pain and other
problems.
Conducted by Dr Tan Siok Bee from Singapore General Hospital, this quarterly workshop aims
to address the often-overlooked emotional load PwP and their caregivers experience, via a
non-medical method to relieve them of their heavy emotional baggage .
Sessions conducted in 2019

Participants

4
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Rhythmic Mind & Movement
Specially designed by Occupational
Therapists for PwP, the Rhythmic Mind
& Movement programme uses the
fundamental dance movement patterns,
incorporating daily movement habits and big
movements. These help improve amplitude
and speed of upper limb movements, trunk
posture and balance during activities of
daily living, using dance and music as the
mediums.
Conducted in both English and Mandarin, the programme aims to improve the overall functional
mobility, cognitive movement strategies in daily activities, confidence and quality of life.
Sessions conducted in 2019

Participants

7
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Programmes
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When a person is newly diagnosed with Parkinson, they are often
overwhelmed by a wide gamut of emotions, ranging from shock to despair
and hopelessness. Left unchecked, these could lead to depression and
anxiety. This is where strong social support comes in. Support from family,
friends and support groups can help improve the emotional and mental
health of PwP . To this end, PSS offers a variety of workshops and access to
support groups organised by hospitals to provide as much social support
for PwP and their loved ones.

Caregivers’ Workshop

Caring for a loved one with Parkinson can be a challenging job, especially as their condition
progresses. Caregivers often experience mixed emotions while caring for their loved ones
and may feel helpless when their loved ones do not seem to be getting better. Through these
workshops, caregivers are better able to understand the difficult journey that their loved ones
are going through and more importantly, that living their lives to the fullest is possible.
PSS provides training for caregivers and community care partners through the Caregivers’
Workshop and Community Care Partners Programme (CCPP) respectively.
Each session comprises a topical talk on Parkinson management by a medical professional,
followed by an open session which provides a safe and supportive environment for caregivers
to share about the challenges they face as well as exchange useful coping strategies.
Sessions conducted in 2019

Participants

4
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Social Support & Integration
Programmes
Youthful Parkinson Circle (YPC)
Youthful Parkinson Circle (YPC) is open to PSS
members who have been diagnosed before
age 60 or with school-going dependents. The
support group meets every two months and
welcomes those who are newly diagnosed with
Parkinson. In support groups, members know
that they are not alone through their sharing
of information and personal experiences and
through group activities and social meetings.
Led by a medical professional, each session
focuses on a PwP related topic, followed by an
open sharing session for PwP to exchange tips
and discuss their experiences on living with
Parkinson.
Sessions conducted in 2019

Participants

6

89

Hospital Support Groups
PSS provides information and
access to the various support
groups organised by the hospitals.
Support groups help to ensure that
PwP receive adequate support in
their journey with Parkinson. PSS
works closely with Changi General
Hospital,
National
University
Hospital,
Singapore
General
Hospital and National Neuroscience
Institute/Tan Tock Seng Hospital to
enable PwP islandwide to receive
such support.
Each hospital conducts a monthly support group session where PwP and their caregivers can
learn more about a specific topic, get their questions answered by medical professionals and
get to know others from the Parkinson community.
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Social & Recreational
Activities
Social interactions are crucial in leading a healthy lifestyle for PwP. Strengthening
relationship bonds through socialising has been proven to boost physical and mental
well-being and alleviate depressive feelings. Being with peers of a similar condition also
creates a sense of community so PwP would not feel alone in their Parkinson journey.
With the generous support from our partners, PSS organised activities for our members
and their caregivers to experience a lighter side of life and bond with each other.

Chinese New Year Reunion
PSS ushered in the Lunar New Year on
16 February with our annual Chinese New
Year Reunion at the Parkinson Centre. More
than 100 PwP, their caregivers, volunteers,
instructors, board members and staff came
together and had a morning of non-stop funfilled activities that got everyone in the festive
mood. Volunteers from the NUS Students’
Community Service Club (CSC) - Signature Love Project XV organised games like Charades, Bingo and
Memory Game that brought out the heartiest laughters in everyone. PSS members also worked in teams
to compete in making creative Chinese paper fans with guidance from the student volunteers. The reunion
ended off with lucky draws, “lohei”, buffet lunch and a mass sing-along-session amidst much fun and joy.

Origami Tulips Craft Session with NUS CSC

About 20 PSS members, caregivers and volunteers from NUS
CSC – Signature Love Project XV got together on 20 March to
work on a “secret mission”. The student volunteers patiently
guided PSS members and their caregivers on making
colourful origami tulips – tulip is the international symbol for
Parkinson – and carefully pasting onto heart-shaped foam
cut-outs. These were then framed up and presented by PSS
members to the Minister for Health, Mr Gan Kim Yong who
was the Guest-of-Honour at “Move To Beat Parkinson 2019”
on 27 April, as well as to former PSS President and current
PSS Advisor, Ms Julie Lau at PSS Annual General Meeting
2019 on 25 May as tokens of appreciation.

Tulipmania @ Gardens by the
Bay with NUS CSC
30 PSS members and caregivers
enjoyed a special treat to Gardens by
The Bay’s “Tulipmania” exhibition on 13
April. Organised by NUS Students’ CSC
- Signature Love Project XV, student
volunteers from the Club chaperoned
PSS members during the walk in the
Flower Dome, which was filled with
over 35 varieties of tulips, windmills and
country house installations. The miniphoto-taking competition also added fun
to the outing, with some PSS members
and volunteers striking creative poses.

Social & Recreational
Activities

Games Hour with Project Axon

Student volunteers from Hwa Chong Institution’s
Project Axon organised two sessions of group
games for PSS members at The Parkinson Centre
on 19 June and 8 July. PSS members bonded over
brain teasers, guessing catch phrases and playing
charades, as well as sporty games with ping pong balls and ring toss. The inter-generational interaction
ended off with good chatter among PSS members and the student volunteers, light refreshments as well as
presentation of specially-designed t-shirts from Project Axon to PSS members.

Enliven Session/Bon Apetit with Project Novo

On 29 June, student volunteers from Hwa Chong Institution’s Project Novo led 15 PwP and caregivers on a
walking trail at Singapore Botanic Gardens. PSS members enjoyed a sunny afternoon walk amidst flora and
fauna at Singapore’s first UNESCO World Heritage site. They even chanced upon an otter family up close and
personal, a treat for those armed with cameras.
Following the walk, everyone convened to Hwa Chong Institution Boarding School (HCIBS) for a buffet dinner
treat with the alumni of Hwa Chong Institution. PSS President, Prof Louis Tan, shared about the Society’s work
for the Parkinson community, and encouraged support for PwP in their journey to live well with Parkinson. PSS
members and Hwa Chong alumni members enjoyed a night of bonding over food and Bingo. The alumni
members left with a newfound understanding of Parkinson and lives of PwP.
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Social & Recreational
Activities
Ex tra ord i n a r y, Ever y Da y

26

Run for Parkinson’s by Project Novo
PSS members gathered at Hwa Chong
Institution for a morning of fun activities
organised by Project Novo on 29 July. The
event started with a great Zumba warm-up
session, followed by a short walk around the
Hwa Chong campus. There were also short
games at pit stops along the way that involved
teamwork and quick thinking. As the event
coincided with Hwa Chong’s annual combined
sports meet, PwP took in the excitement and
buzz in the air, and participated in the ongoing
student carnival too.

Empowering Parkinson in Action Bootcamp

Batik Painting Workshop
PSS members had a creative afternoon of
batik painting on 30 July hosted by Tai Chi
Master Jennifer Chung and her volunteers.
Participants were guided on painting
techniques and each completed a unique
piece of artwork on a batik canvas that
showcased their artistic talents

Following the success of the inaugural Empowering
Parkinson in Action (EPA) Bootcamp in 2018, EPA
2019 received full thumbs-up again from the 44 PSS
members and their caregivers who participated in the
full-day workshop held at SAFRA Toa Payoh on 24
August. This year’s programme was curated for PwP
with moderate or severe symptoms. Participants learned
about various aspects of Parkinson management from
the experts through interactive lectures and engaging
workouts.
The success of EPA 2019 would not have been possible
without the support of the various medical and allied
health professionals from National Neuroscience
Institute, Khoo Teck Puat Hospital, Singapore General
Hospital, St Luke’s ElderCare, Tan Tock Seng Hospital
and volunteers.

PSS serves as a resource centre where public education programmes, talks and
forums as well as learning materials on Parkinson are made available. We also support
forums and symposiums on Parkinson run by hospitals as part of our community
outreach to the Parkinson community.
Many of our programmes and events would not have been possible without the
relentless support from our dedicated volunteers who are the key drivers of
sustainability across our community programmes to bring cheer to our beneficiaries.
From regular physiotherapy class assistants to the ad-hoc volunteers at major events
helping out with registration, ushering, first aid and photography amongst others,
each and every volunteer has contributed to our service delivery and we are deeply
appreciative of their giving and contributions.

Move to Beat Parkinson 2019

Our annual outreach “Move to Beat Parkinson” event saw a record of more than 700 participants . Held
at Toa Payoh HDB Hub for the second year on 27 April in conjunction with World Parkinson’s Day, the
event was graced by Guest-of-Honour, Minister for Health Mr Gan Kim Yong. Minister Gan also launched
#StepUp4Parkinson2019, a 10-week online campaign to encourage PwP to stay active. After a mass warmup led by Principal Physiotherapist, Ms Sylvia Liew, PSS Parkinson Warriors also took to the stage to showcase
their Kickboxing, Tai Chi and vocal skills picked up at PSS.
Participants found out more about Parkinson and its related programmes and services through visiting
booths run by PSS, National Neuroscience Institute, St Luke’s ElderCare, as well as through engaging games
and activities by student volunteers from Hwa Chong Institution and Raffles Girls’ School. The event ended
with everyone grooving to the beat of the Zumba routine led by a team of volunteers from various healthcare
institutions.
PSS is grateful for the over 120 volunteers from National Neuroscience Institute, Singapore General Hospital,
Tan Tock Seng Hospital, and from among PSS Parkinson Warriors, regular volunteers, instructors, product
sponsors and everyone who contributed to the success of Move to Beat Parkinson 2019.
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CaREhab 2019
Our Principal Physiotherapist, Sylvia Liew, was
invited to help curate the programme for the
participants of the CaREhab 2019 Pre-Congress
Workshop held at Singapore EXPO on 21
February. Titled “Parkinson: Epidemiology to
Progressive Rehabilitation”, the workshop led by
A/Prof Eric Shamus, Chair & Associate Professor,
Department of Rehabilitation Sciences, Florida
Gulf Coast University, USA, drew a good mix of
local and overseas physiotherapists and doctors.
Apart from learning more about Parkinson through
Prof Shamus’s presentation, the participants were
also treated to hands-on sessions on Kickboxing,
Tai Chi, Yoga and Tango, tailored for PwP by a
team of experienced trainers.

6th Asian and Oceanian
Parkinson’s Disease and Movement
Disorders Congress
PSS was honoured to have been invited to the
6th Asian and Oceanian Parkinson’s Disease
and Movement Disorders Congress to share
about the support PSS gives to the Parkinson
community in Singapore. Held in Hangzhou
from 12-14 April, the event was well attended
by clinicians, healthcare professionals and
researchers in the region where updated
knowledge about movement disorders,
research collaborations and related initiatives
were shared.

NNI Brain Awareness Roadshow
PSS participated in the Brain Awareness Roadshow
organised by the National Neuroscience Institute
on 18 and 19 May at Toa Payoh HDB Hub. Themed
“Better Minds, Better Lives, Better Tomorrow”,
this was the second NNI Roadshow held to raise
awareness of neurological conditions, such as
dementia, Parkinson, stroke and brain tumours. The
event featured informative talks covering a variety of
neurological conditions and included free screening
for Parkinson. Over the two days, PSS raised
awareness of Parkinson and shared with the public
about the services and resources available at The
Parkinson Centre to improve the lives of PwP.

Public Education &
Community Engagement
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Community Training Workshop

Besting Parkinson’s Disease:
Public Forum 2019
PSS supported the “Besting Parkinson’s
Disease: Public Forum 2019” on 30 November
at Toa Payoh West Community Club. Organised
by National Neuroscience Institute, the forum
covered a broad range of topics on Parkinson
management. Our Principal Physiotherapist
Sylvia Liew shared about exercising and its
importance for PwP. PSS also engaged the
participants at our display booth during the
event.

As part of PSS’s continual efforts to train
community partners and make care for Parkinson
more accessible islandwide, PSS organized its
annual workshop on 1 June at St Luke’s ElderCare
(Ayer Rajah). The full-day workshop was attended
by 40 physiotherapists and therapy assistants
from St Luke’s ElderCare (SLEC) and NTUC
Health. Through a series of lectures, practical
sessions, case discussions and competency
tests, participants gained knowledge to work with
PwP in the community. They also found out more
about how to run effective physiotherapy classes
to delay Parkinson symptoms through moderateto-intensive exercises.
PSS is grateful for the active participation from
the community partners as well as the support of
allied health professionals from SLEC, Singapore
General Hospital, Tan Tock Seng Hospital and PSS
volunteers.

Music Therapy Workshop
PSS is grateful for the first special music therapy workshop conducted by
Michelle Low, Music Therapist from Singapore General Hospital for PSS
instructors and therapists. Held at The Parkinson Centre on 2 November,
the workshop provided an overview of music therapy and how it could be
incorporated into rehabilitation programmes to help PwP.
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Fundraising
I Run For Parkinson @Standard Chartered Singapore Marathon
“I Run for Parkinson 2019” was a new initiative of PSS
calling for running enthusiasts to make their race in
the Standard Chartered Singapore Marathon 2019
more meaningful by raising awareness and funds to
support PwP. Making another meaningful first was
the formation of Team Parkinson – a team of PwP
who participated in the 5km category on 1 December.
Team Parkinson, comprising nine brave PSS
Parkinson warriors, four caregivers and six volunteers
from Singapore General Hospital (SGH) and PSS,
completed the 5km run well within the official cut-off
time of one hour and fifteen minutes – which might
seem like a simple task for running enthusiasts, but a
commendable feat for PwP.
The event also saw four individuals – PSS Board
Member Dr Tan Boon Wan, Khen Kee Wei, Jerlynn
Goh and Cindy Chong – stepping forth to help raise
awareness and funds in support of PwP as they ran
the full 42km marathon on 30 November.
The initiative not just raised $18,800, it also raised the
spirits of many PwP and the general public who were
inspired by the achievements of Team Parkinson who
had to beat the heat, time and distance while relying
on the efficacy of their Parkinson medication and
sheer determination to complete the race.
PSS is grateful for the courage of Team Parkinson,
support from the marathoners and SGH volunteers,
as well as corporate supporters Lundbeck Singapore
and Semco Design Communications, all donors,
volunteers and the media.

In Appreciation of
Donors & Sponsors
PSS would like to thank all donors and sponsors for their generous giving and support,
including many donors who prefer to remain anonymous. Your support has helped
made a difference in the lives of our beneficiaries and the local Parkinson community
at large. While we have taken great care to ensure accuracy of the list, we seek your
kind understanding for any inadvertent omission on our part.
$10,000 – $20,000
Chew Chee Khoon
Tai Sun (Lim Kee) Food Industries
Lundbeck Singapore

$1,000 – $3,000
Dr Mervyn Ng Cher Hui
Mi Toung Leung Chee Hang
Foo Kaw Jee
The Be.Live Practice
David Lim Yew Lee
Campbell Johnston Clark

Sponsors
AOX Alkaline Water
Hwa Chong Institution Project Axon
Khong Guan Biscuits Factory
Lundbeck Singapore
Marigold HL Milk
Marigold 100% Juice
Marigold Peelfresh
NUS CSC - Signature Love Project XV
Seika
Semco Design Communications
Singapore Pools
Sunshine Bakery
Swensen’s
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CODE OF GOVERNANCE
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S/N CODE DESCRIPTION

1

2
3
4

5
6

7
8
9

CODE OF GOVERNANCE
Induction and orientation are provided to incoming governing Board Members
upon joining the Board.

CODE ID

COMPLIANCE

1.1.2

Complied

Are there governing Board Members holding staff appointments?
(skip items 2 and 3 if “No”)		
Staff does not chair the Board and does not comprise more than one third of the Board.
1.1.3		
There are written job descriptions for the staff’s executive functions and operational
1.1.5
duties, which are distinct from the staff’s Board role.		
The Treasurer of the charity (or any person holding an equivalent position in the charity, e.g.
1.1.7
Complied
Finance Committee Chairman or a governing Board Member responsible for overseeing the
finances of the charity) can only serve a maximum of 4 consecutive years.
If the charity has not appointed any governing Board Member to oversee its finances,
it will be presumed that the Chairman oversees the finances of the charity.
All governing Board Members must submit themselves for re-nomination and
1.1.8
Complied
re-appointment, at least once every 3 years.
The Board conducts self evaluation to assess its performance and effectiveness
1.1.12
Complied
once during its term or every 3 years, whichever is shorter.
Is there any governing Board Member who has served for more than
10 consecutive years? (skip item 7 if “No”)		
The charity discloses in its Annual Report the reasons for retaining the governing
1.1.13
Complied
board member who has served for more than 10 consecutive years.
There are documented Terms of Reference for the Board and each of its committees.
1.2.1
Complied
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
There are documented procedures for governing Board Members and staff to declare
actual or potential conflicts of interest to the Board at the earliest opportunity.

2.1

Complied

2.4

Complied

3.2.2

Complied

HUMAN RESOURCE AND VOLUNTEER MANAGEMENT
The Board approves documented human resource policies for staff.

5.1

Complied

13

There is a documented Code of Conduct for governing Board Members,
staff and volunteers (where applicable) which is approved by the Board.

5.3

Complied

14

There are processes for regular supervision, appraisal and professional development of staff.
5.5
Are there volunteers serving in the charity? (skip item 15 if “No”)		

Complied

15

There are volunteer management policies in place for volunteers.

5.7

Complied

10

11

12

Governing Board Members do not vote or participate in decision making on
matters where they have a conflict of interest.
STRATEGIC PLANNING
The Board periodically reviews and approves the strategic plan for the charity to
ensure that the charity’s activities are in line with the charity’s objectives.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

16

There is a documented policy to seek the Board’s approval for any loans, donations,
grants or financial assistance provided by the charity which are not part of the charity’s
core charitable programmes.

6.1.1

Complied

17

The Board ensures that internal controls for financial matters in key areas are in place with
documented procedures.

6.1.2

Complied

18

The Board ensures that reviews on the charity’s internal controls, processes, key
programmes and events are regularly conducted.

6.1.3

Complied

19

The Board ensures that there is a process to identify, and regularly monitor and review the
charity’s key risks.

6.1.4

Complied

20

The Board approves an annual budget for the charity’s plans and regularly monitors the
charity’s expenditure.

6.2.1

Complied

Does the charity invest its reserves (e.g. in fixed deposits)? (skip item 21 if “No”)		

S/N CODE DESCRIPTION

CODE ID

COMPLIANCE

21

The charity has a documented investment policy approved by the Board.

6.4.3

Complied

22

FUNDRAISING PRACTICES
Did the charity receive cash donations (solicited or unsolicited) during the financial year?
(skip item 22 if “No”)		
All collections received (solicited or unsolicited) are properly accounted for and promptly
7.2.2
deposited by the charity.
Did the charity receive donations in kind during the financial year? (skip item 23 if “No”)		
All donations in kind received are properly recorded and accounted for by the charity.
7.2.3

Complied

23
24

25
26

27
28

29

30
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Complied

DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY		

The charity discloses in its Annual Report —
(a) the number of Board meetings in the financial year; and
(b) the attendance of every governing Board Member at those meetings.

8.2

Are governing Board Members remunerated for their services to the Board?
(skip items 25 and 26 if “No”)		
No governing Board Member is involved in setting his own remuneration.
2.2
The charity discloses the exact remuneration and benefits received by each governing
board member in its annual report.
OR
The charity discloses that no governing board member is remunerated.
8.3
Does the charity employ paid staff? (skip items 27, 28 and 29 if “No”)		
No staff is involved in setting his own remuneration.
2.2
The charity discloses in its annual report —
8.4
(a) the total annual remuneration for each of its 3 highest paid staff who each has received
remuneration (including remuneration received from the charity’s subsidiaries) exceeding
$100,000 during the financial year; and
(b) whether any of the 3 highest paid staff also serves as a governing board member of the
charity.
The information relating to the remuneration of the staff must be presented in bands of
$100,000.
OR
The charity discloses that none of its paid staff receives more than $100,000 each in annual
remuneration.
The charity discloses the number of paid staff who satisfies all of the following criteria:
8.5
(a) the staff is a close member of the family belonging to the Executive Head or a governing
board member of the charity;
(b) the staff has received remuneration exceeding $50,000 during the financial year.
The information relating to the remuneration of the staff must be presented in bands of
$100,000.
OR
The charity discloses that there is no paid staff, being a close member of the family
belonging to the Executive Head or a governing board member of the charity, who has
received remuneration exceeding $50,000 during the financial year.

Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied

PUBLIC IMAGE		

The charity has a documented communication policy on the release of information about
the charity and its activities across all media platforms.

9.2

Complied
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STATEMENT BY THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
The Executive Committee present their statement together with the audited financial statements of
Parkinson Society Singapore (the “Society”) for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.
In the opinion of the Executive Committee,
a) the financial statements are drawn up so present fairly, in all material respects, the state of affairs of
the Society as at 31 December 2019 and the results, changes in funds and cash flows of the Society
for the financial year then ended; and
b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Society will be able to
pay its debts as and when they fall due.
The Executive Committee, comprising the following, authorised the issue of these financial statements on

President
Vice-President
Secretary
Treasurer
Assistant Treasurer
Advisor
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member

Tan Chew Seng Louis
Lam Hock Choon
Neo Lay Tin
Hung Kwang Hou
Goh Sin Sing Theresa
Lau Meow Hoon Julie
Tan Siok Bee
Chiang Kheng Long Melvyn
Tan May Leng Dawn
Tay Kay Yaw
Li Wei
Christine Kang Hwee
Tan Hooi Hwa
Tan Boon Wan
Sim Peck San
Xu Zheyu

On behalf of the Executive Committee,

Tan Chew Seng Louis
President

Hung Kwang Hou
Treasurer

Singapore,

Fiducia LLP, Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants of Singapore
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Parkinson Society Singapore (the “Society”)
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows of the Society for the
financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Societies Act, Chapter 311 (the “Societies Act”), the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and other
relevant regulations (“the Charities Act and Regulations”) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore
(“FRSs”) so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the state of affairs the Society as at 31 December
2019, and the results, changes in funds and cash flows of the Society for the financial year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Society in accordance with the Accounting and
Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and
Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Statement by
Executive Committee but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the provisions of the Societies Act, the Charities Act and Regulations and FRSs, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Society’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Society or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Society’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:


Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Society’s internal control.



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)


Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Society’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Society to cease to continue as a going concern.



Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion,
(a) the accounting and other records required by the Society have been properly kept in accordance with the
provisions of the Societies Regulations enacted under the Societies Act, the Charities Act and
Regulations; and
(b) the fund-raising appeal held during the financial year ended 31 December 2019 has been carried out in
accordance with Regulation 6 of the Societies Regulations issued under the Societies Act and proper
accounts and other records have been kept of the fund-raising appeal.
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Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Cont’d)
During the course of our audit, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that during the
financial year:
(a)

the Society has not used the donation moneys in accordance with its objectives as required under
Regulation 11 of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations; and

(b)

the Society has not complied with the requirements of Regulation 15 of the Charities (Institutions of
a Public Character) Regulations.

Fiducia LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore,
Partner-in-charge:
PAB No.:

Soo Hon Weng
01089
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INCOME
Voluntary income
- Tax deductible donations
- Non-tax deductible donations
Grants
Fund raising income
Programme income
Merchandise sales
Membership subscription
Events income
Other income
EXPENDITURE
Accounting fees
Administrative expenses
Auditor’s remuneration
Bank charges
Commission on online donations
Depreciation
Facilities management expenses
Fund raising expenses
Insurance
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Non-capitalised assets
Patient welfare expenses
Printing, stationery and postages
Programme costs
Programme instructors’ costs
Public education and publicity
Refreshment
Rental of equipment and facilities
Short term lease expense – office unit
Staff costs
Transportation
Utilities
Volunteer development and recognition
Other expenses

Note

16

7
16

17

Net surplus for the year, representing total
comprehensive income for the financial year

2019
S$

2018
S$

101,262
27,311
548,054
24,162
160,320
940
6,624
1,150
79,918
949,741

33,218
163,000
364,893
300,394
143,725
1,225
9,735
2,880
64,067
1,083,137

12,960
7,108
9,704
2,157
2,973
62,113
19,186
2,259
8,149
221
715
3,325
10,019
39,931
101,658
3,200
3,719
0
13,135
433,493
4,055
13,593
10,526
3,166
767,365

11,860
7,364
9,309
3,794
778
60,405
13,491
54,744
4,538
0
392
1,628
8,413
38,304
52,240
8,411
2,039
14,498
0
344,249
175
11,136
6,990
5,919
660,677

182,376

422,460

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DETAILED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Unrestricted funds
Note
2019
Voluntary income
Tax deductible donations
Non tax deductible donations

15

Grants
Grant from Agency for Integrated Care
Grant from Ministry of Health
ComChest Charity Support Fund
GoldmanSachs Gives
President’s Challenge

Fund raising income

16

Programme income
Merchandise sales
Membership subscription
Events income

Other income
Amortisation of deferred capital grant
Interest income
PT workshop
Wages credit scheme
Other income

TOTAL INCOME

10

General Fund
S$

Care and Share
Matching fund
S$

Community Silver
Trust Matching fund
S$

Restricted funds
Capital
Patient Welfare GS Gives Annual Community Care
Expenditure fund
fund
Giving fund
Training Grant
S$
S$
S$
S$

Total Funds
President’s
Challenge
S$

Total
S$

S$

101,262
27,311
128,573

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

101,262
27,311
128,573

500
118,092
50,000
0
0
168,592

0
0
0
0
0
0

155,729
0
0
0
0
155,729

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
13,844
0
13,844

4,889
0
0
0
0
4,889

0
0
0
0
205,000
205,000

160,618
0
0
13,844
205,000
379,462

161,118
118,092
50,000
13,844
205,000
548,054

24,162

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

24,162

160,320
940
6,624
1,150
169,034

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

160,320
940
6,624
1,150
169,034

44,063
27,398
250
7,622
585
79,918

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

44,063
27,398
250
7,622
585
79,918

570,279

0

155,729

0

0

13,844

4,889

205,000

379,462

949,741

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DETAILED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
(CONT’D)

Unrestricted funds
Note
2019 EXPENDITURE
Accounting fees
Administrative expenses
Auditor’s remuneration
Bank charges
Commission on online donations
Depreciation
Facilities management expenses
Fund raising expenses
Insurance
Interest expenses on lease liabilities
Non-capitalised assets
Patient welfare expenses
Printing, stationery and postages
Programme costs
Programme instructors’ costs
Public education and publicity
Refreshment
Short term lease expense – office unit
Staff costs
Transportation
Utilities
Volunteer development and recognition
Other expenses
TOTAL EXPENDITURE
NET SURPLUS OF THE YEAR
Transfers

7
16

8
17

General Fund
S$

Care and Share
Matching fund
S$

Community Silver
Trust Matching fund
S$

Restricted funds
Capital
Patient Welfare GS Gives Annual Community Care
Expenditure fund
fund
Giving fund
Training Grant
S$
S$
S$
S$

12,960
2,908
5,350
2,157
2,973
60,269
624
2,259
24
221
0
0
6,140
23,418
5,079
1,404
3,719
11,203
168,755
3,860
11,059
102
765
325,249

0
4,200
0
0
0
1,844
970
0
0
0
0
0
1,402
10,592
0
0
0
0
1,168
0
0
0
2,401
22,577

0
0
4,354
0
0
0
17,592
0
8,125
0
715
0
2,477
5,921
88,989
1,796
0
1,932
53,337
195
2,534
7,644
0
195,611

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
3,325
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
3,325

245,030

(22,577)

(39,882)

0

3,130

0

0

0
0
0
0

Total Funds
President’s
Challenge
S$

Total
S$

S$

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
7,590
0
0
0
3,474
0
0
2,780
0
13,844

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1,759
0
0
0
0
1,759

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
205,000
0
0
0
0
205,000

0
4,200
4,354
0
0
1,844
18,562
0
8,125
0
715
3,325
3,879
16,513
96,579
1,796
0
1,932
264,738
195
2,534
10,424
2,401
442,116

12,960
7,108
9,704
2,157
2,973
62,113
19,186
2,259
8,149
221
715
3,325
10,019
39,931
101,658
3,200
3,719
13,135
433,493
4,055
13,593
10,526
3,166
767,365

(3,325)

0

3,130

0

(62,654)

182,376

0

0

0

(3,130)

0

(3,130)

0

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward at 01.01.2019
Effect of adopting FRS 116 Leases
Total funds brought forward at 01.01.2019
(restated)

2,045,031
(183)

25,225
0

39,882
0

200,000
0

19,863
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

284,970
0

2,330,001
(183)

2,044,848

25,225

39,882

200,000

19,863

0

0

0

284,970

2,329,818

TOTAL FUNDS AT 31.12.2019

2,293,008

2,648

0

200,000

16,538

0

0

0

219,186

2,512,194

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DETAILED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
Unrestricted
funds

Note
2018
Voluntary income
Tax deductible donations
Non tax deductible
donations

15

Grants
Grant from Ministry of
Health
Grant from Ministry
of Social and Family
Development
ComChest Charity
Support Fund
Tote Board grant

Fund raising income

16

Programme income
Merchandise sales
Membership subscription
Events income

Other income
Amortisation of deferred
capital grant
Interest income
Wages credit scheme
Other income

TOTAL INCOME

10

General
Fund
S$

Restricted funds
Care and Community
Share Silver Trust Capital
Patient
Matching Matching Expenditure Welfare
fund
fund
fund
fund
S$
S$
S$
S$

Total
Funds

Total
S$

S$

33,218

0

0

0

0

0

33,218

163,000
196,218

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

163,000
196,218

133,636

0

0

0

0

0

133,636

0

66,392

0

0

0

66,392

66,392

50,000
114,865
298,501

0
0
66,392

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
66,392

50,000
114,865
364,893

300,394

0

0

0

0

0

300,394

143,725
1,225
9,735
2,880
157,565

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

143,725
1,225
9,735
2,880
157,565

50,695
6,007
6,729
636
64,067

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

50,695
6,007
6,729
636
64,067

1,016,745

66,392

0

0

0

66,392

1,083,137

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(CON’T)
Unrestricted
funds

Note
2018 EXPENDITURE
Accounting fees
Administrative expenses
Auditor’s remuneration
Bank charges
Commission on online
donations
Depreciation
Facilities management
expenses
Fund raising expenses
Insurance
Non-capitalised assets
Patient welfare expenses
Printing, stationery and
postages
Programme costs
Programme instructors’
costs
Public education and
publicity
Refreshment
Rental of equipment and
facilities
Staff costs
Transportation
Utilities
Volunteer development
and recognition
Other expenses
TOTAL EXPENDITURE
NET SURPLUS OF THE
YEAR

General
Fund
S$

Restricted funds
Care and Community
Share Silver Trust Capital
Patient
Matching Matching Expenditure Welfare
fund
fund
fund
fund
S$
S$
S$
S$

Total
Funds

Total
S$

S$

11,860
6,797
9,309
3,794

0
567
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
567
0
0

11,860
7,364
9,309
3,794

7

778
58,873

0
1,532

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1,532

778
60,405

16

4,947
54,744

8,544
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

8,544
0

13,491
54,744

4,538
135
0

0
257
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
1,628

0
257
1,628

4,538
392
1,628

8,411
17,571

2
20,733

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
20,733

8,413
38,304

30,640

0

21,600

0

0

21,600

52,240

7,951
2,039

460
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

460
0

8,411
2,039

14,498
277,056
143
11,136

0
0
32
0

0
67,193
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
67,193
32
0

14,498
344,249
175
11,136

6,990
5,919
538,129

0
0
32,127

0
0
88,793

0
0
0

0
0
1,628

0
0
122,548

6,990
5,919
660,677

478,616

34,265

(88,793)

0

(1,628) (56,156)

422,460

17

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought
forward at 01.01.2018
Prior year adjustments
Total funds brought
forward at 01.01.2018
(restated)

1,660,257
(93,842)

25,793
(34,833)

0
128,675

200,000
0

21,491
0

247,284
93,842

1,907,541
0

1,566,415

(9,040)

128,675

200,000

21,491

341,126

1,907,541

TOTAL FUNDS AT
31.12.2018

2,045,031

25,225

39,882

200,000

19,863

284,970

2,330,001

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
Note

2019
S$

2018
S$

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and bank balances
Receivables, deposits and prepayment

5
6

2,655,835
20,758
2,676,593

2,285,749
55,251
2,341,000

Non-current asset
Property, plant and equipment

7

197,888

234,461

2,874,481

2,575,461

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables and accruals
Deferred capital grant
Deferred grant
Lease liabilities

9
10
11
12

26,135
43,981
177,141
1,391
248,648

46,004
44,063
0
0
90,067

Non-current liabilities
Deferred capital grant
Lease liabilities

10
12

111,412
2,227
113,639

155,393
0
155,393

362,287

245,460

2,512,194

2,330,001

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted fund
General Fund

13

2,293,008

2,045,031

Restricted funds
Patient Welfare Fund
Capital Expenditure Fund
Care and Share Matching Fund
Community Silver Trust Matching Fund
GS Gives Annual Giving Fund
Community Care Training Grant
President’s Challenge

14
14
14
14
14
14
14

16,538
200,000
2,648
0
0
0
0
219,186

19,863
200,000
25,225
39,882
0
0
0
284,970

2,512,194

2,330,001

TOTAL FUNDS

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2019

Note

Balance as at 01 January 2019, as
previously reported
Effect of adopting FRS 116 Leases

2,045,031
2.1

Balance as at 01 January 2019, after
adopting FRS 116

14

Balance as at 31 December 2019

Prior year adjustments
Balance as at 01 January 2018
– As restated
Net income/(expenditure)
Balance as at 31 December 2018

2,330,001

0

(183)

284,970

2,329,818
182,376

3,130

(3,130)

0

1,660,257
25

284,970

(62,654)

Unrestricted
Fund
S$

Balance as at 01 January 2018
- As previously stated

Total
S$

245,030

2,293,008

2018

Restricted
Funds
S$

(183)
2,044,848

Net income/(expenditure)
Transfer

Unrestricted
Fund
S$

(93,842)
1,566,415
478,616
2,045,031

219,186

2,512,194

Restricted
Funds
S$

Total
S$

247,284

1,907,541

93,842

0

341,126

1,907,541

(56,156)

422,460

284,970

2,330,001

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Fiducia LLP, Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants of Singapore
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income for the year
Adjustments for:
- Amortisation of deferred capital grant
- Depreciation
- Interest expense on lease liabilities
- Interest income
Operating cash flow before changes in working capital

10
7

Changes in working capital:
- Receivables, deposits and prepayment
- Payables and accruals
Cash generated from operations
- Interest received
Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Increase in fixed deposits with maturity over 3 months
Interest received
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Net cash (used in) investing activities

7

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Net cash used in financing activities
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year

2018
S$

182,376

422,460

(44,063)
62,113
221
(27,398)
173,249

(50,695)
60,405
0
(6,007)
426,163

34,493
157,272
365,014
787
365,801

(44,486)
28,145
409,822
785
410,607

(1,015,622)
26,611
(20,785)
(1,009,796)

(106,897)
4,861
0
(102,036)

(221)
(1,320)
(1,541)

0
0
0

(645,536)

308,571

2,178,852

1,870,281

5

1,533,316

2,178,852

5

973
812,812
1,842,050
2,655,835
(1,122,519)
1,533,316

949
1,763,873
520,927
2,285,749
(106,897)
2,178,852

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Fixed deposits
Less: Fixed deposits with maturity more than 3 months

2019
S$

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements.
1.

General information
Parkinson Society Singapore (the “Society”) was registered as a Society under the Societies Act,
Chapter 311 on 17 December 1996. The Society is a charity registered under the Charities Act,
Chapter 37 since 28 January 2000.
The Society’s registered address and principal place of operation is located at 191 Bishan Street 13,
#01-415, Singapore 570191.
The Society was accorded as an Institution of a Public Character (“IPC”) status for the 1 December
2018 to 30 November 2021.
The Society's mission is to promote awareness and understanding of Parkinson and related disorders
by educating patients, caregivers and their communities, and by supporting them holistically in their
journey with Parkinson.
The objectives of the Society are:




To disseminate knowledge and information which promote better care and management of
Parkinson through books, websites, talks and public forums;
To provide therapeutic programmes and services that help patients sustain their functions and
total well-being;
To establish a social and community network of support for patients and caregivers through
support group, healthcare training and social events.

2.

Significant accounting policies

2.1

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards in
Singapore and the disclosure requirements of the Societies Act, Chapter 311, the Charities Act,
Chapter 37 and Regulations. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Society’s accounting policies. It also requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in Note 3.
The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollar (S$), which is the Society’s functional
currency.
Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2019
On 01 January 2019, the Society adopted the new or amended FRSs and Interpretations of FRSs (“INT
FRSs”) that are relevant and mandatory to its operations and effective on 1 January 2019. Changes to
the Society’s accounting policies have been made as required, in accordance with the transitional
provisions in the respective FRSs and INT FRSs.

Fiducia LLP, Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants of Singapore
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2.

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2019 (Cont’d)
Except for the adoption of FRS 116 Leases, the adoption of these new or amended FRSs and INT FRSs
did not result in substantial changes to the Society’s accounting policies and had no material effect on
the amounts reported for the current or prior financial years.
Adoption of FRS 116 Leases
When the Society is the lessee
Prior to the adoption of FRS 116, non-cancellable operating lease payments were not recognised as
liabilities in the statement of financial position. These payments were recognised as rental expenses
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
The Society’s accounting policy on leases after the adoption of FRS 116 is as disclosed in Note 2.12.
On initial application of FRS 116, the Society has elected to apply the following practical expedients:
i)

For all contracts entered into before 1 January 2019 and that were previously identified as
leases under FRS 17 Leases, INT FRS 104 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, the Society has not reassessed if such contracts contain leases under FRS 116; and

ii)

On a lease-by-lease basis, the Society has:
a) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;
b) relied on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous as an alternative to
performing an impairment review;
c) accounted for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1
January 2019 as short-term leases;
d) excluded initial direct costs in the measurement of the right-of-use (“ROU”) asset at the
date of initial application; and
e) used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend
or terminate the lease.

There were no onerous contracts as at 1 January 2019.
For leases previously classified as operating leases on 1 January 2019, the Society has applied the
following transition provisions:
(i)

On a lease-by-lease basis, the Society chose to measure its ROU assets (except for ROU
assets which meet the definition of investment property) at a carrying amount as if FRS 116
had been applied since the commencement of the lease but discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019.

(ii)

Recognised its lease liabilities by discounting the remaining lease payments as at 1 January
2019 using the incremental borrowing rate for each individual lease or, if applicable, the
incremental borrowing rate for each portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristic.

(iii)

The difference between the carrying amounts of the ROU assets and lease liabilities as at 1
January 2019 is adjusted directly to opening retained profits. Comparative information is not
restated.
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Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2019 (Cont’d)
Adoption of FRS 116 Leases (Cont’d)
When the Society is the lessee (Cont’d)
(iv)

For leases previously classified as finance leases, the carrying amount of the leased asset and
finance lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 are determined as the carrying amount of the
ROU assets and lease liabilities.

The effects of adoption of FRS 116 on the Society’s financial statements as at 1 January 2019 are as
follows:
1 January
FRS 116
1 January
2019
adjustments
2019
S$
S$
S$
(As previously
(As
Statement of financial position
reported)
restated)
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
234,461
4,755
239,216
Current liabilities
Lease liabilities

0

(1,320)

(1,320)

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

0

(3,618)

(3,618)

Unrestricted fund
General fund

(2,045,031)

183

(2,044,848)

An explanation of the differences between the operating lease commitments previously disclosed in
the Society’s financial statements as at 31 December 2018 and the lease liabilities recognised in the
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2019 are as follows :
S$
Operating lease commitment disclosed as at 31 December 2018
Less: Discounting effect using weighted average prime lending rate of 5.25%
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019

Fiducia LLP, Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants of Singapore
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2.

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
Standards issued but not effective
The Society has not adopted the following standards that have been issued but not yet effective:
Descriptions
Amendments to:
References to the Conceptual Framework in FRS Standards
Illustrative examples, implementation guidance and FRS practice
statements
FRS 103 : Definition of a Business
FRS 1 and FRS 8: Definition of Material
FRS 109, FRS 39 and FRS 107: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
Amendments to:
FRS 116 : Covid-19 – Related Rent Concessions

Annual periods
commencing on
1 January 2020

1 June 2020

FRS 117 Insurance contracts

1 January 2021

Amendments to:
FRS 1 : Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

1 January 2022

The management believes that the adoption of the revised standards and interpretations will have no
material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application.
2.2

Income recognition
Income is measured based on the consideration to which the Society expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised good and service to a customer, excluding amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.
Income is recognised when the Society satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised
good and service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the good and service.
A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time. The amount of revenue recognised is the
amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation.
2.2.1

Membership subscription
Income from membership subscription is recognised on time apportionment basis over the
period of the membership.
Types of membership are as follows:

Ordinary membership – below 60 years old : S$50 (yearly)

Senior ordinary membership – above 60 years old : S$30 (yearly)
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2.2

Income recognition (Cont’d)
2.2.2

55

Donations
Donations are recognised and accrued in the statement of comprehensive income as and when
they are committed. Uncommitted donations are recognised on receipt basis.
Donations-in-kind are recognised when the fair value of the assets received can be reasonably
ascertained.

2.2.3

Programme income
Programme income refers to programme fees from PSS therapeutic programmes and
assessments, talks, seminars, and workshops, all aimed at improving Parkinson condition and
is recognised over the period of the programme conducted and the collectability of the related
receivables are reasonably assured.

2.2.4

Merchandise sales
Income from the merchandise sales is recognised when the goods are delivered to the
customer and all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. The amount of income
recognised is based on the estimated transaction price, which comprises the contractual price.

2.2.5

Event and other income
Event income is recognised when earned.

2.3

Grants
Grants from the government or corporate entities are recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Society will comply with all attached
conditions. Grants, relating to cost, are deferred and recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income over the period necessary to match them with the costs they are intended to compensate.

2.4

Expenditure recognition
All expenditures are accounted for on accrual basis, aggregated under the respective areas. Direct
costs are attributed to the activity where possible. Where costs are not wholly attributable to an
activity, they are apportioned on a basis consistent with the use of resources.
Cost of generating funds from fund-raising activities
Costs that are directly attributable to the fund-raising activities are separated from those costs
incurred in undertaking charitable activities.

2.5

Property, plant and equipment
2.5.1

Measurement
All property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised includes its purchase
price and any costs that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
2.5.1

Measurement (Cont’d)
Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are included as part of the cost of property, plant
and equipment if the obligation for dismantlement, removal and restoration is included as a
consequence of acquiring or using the property, plant and equipment.

2.5.2

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their depreciable amounts over their estimated useful lives are as follows:
Useful lives
Furniture and fittings
Gym equipment
Leasehold improvement
Right to use asset – copier machine

3 to 5 years
5 years
10 years
Over the remaining lease term

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting date. The effects of
any revision of the residual values and useful lives are included in the statement of
comprehensive income for the financial year in which the changes arise.
Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements.
2.5.3

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already been
recognised is added to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Society and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance expenses are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income which incurred.

2.5.4

Disposal
On disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and its carrying amount is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.

2.6

Impairment of non-financial assets
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is
any objective evidence or indication that these assets may be impaired.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less
cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. If this is the case, the
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
If the recoverable amount of the asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
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Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)
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The difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount is recognised as an impairment
loss in the statement of comprehensive income, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in
which case, such impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
carrying amount of this asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
accumulated amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years.
A reversal of impairment loss for an asset is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,
unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, such reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase. However, to the extent that an impairment loss on the same revalued asset was previously
recognised as an expense, a reversal of that impairment is also recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.
2.7

Financial assets
(a)

Classification and measurement
The Society classifies its financial assets into the measurement category of amortised cost.
The classification of debt instruments depends on the Society’s business model for managing
the financial assets as well as the contractual terms of the cash flows of the financial asset.
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
The Society reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.
At initial recognition
At initial recognition, the Society measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
At subsequent measurement
Debt instruments of the Society mainly comprise of cash and bank balances, other receivables
and deposits.
The Society managed these groups of financial assets by collecting the contractual cash flow
and these cash flows represented solely payment of principal and interest. Accordingly, these
groups of financial assets are measured at amortised cost subsequent to initial recognition.
A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not
part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or
impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in interest income using the
effective interest rate method.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.7

Financial assets (Cont’d)
(b)

Impairment
The Society assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
debt financial assets carried at amortised cost.
For cash and bank balances, other receivables and deposits, the general 3 stage approach is
applied. Credit loss allowance is based on 12-month expected credit loss if there is no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the assets. If there is a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, lifetime expected credit loss will be calculated and
recognised.

(c)

Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date – the date on
which the Society commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Society has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.
On disposal of a debt instrument, the difference between the carrying amount and the sale
proceeds is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.8

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Society becomes a party to the contractual agreements of
the instrument and are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into. All interest related charges are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Financial
liabilities include “Payables and accruals” and “Lease liabilities” in the statement of financial position.
Financial liabilities which are due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date are presented
as current liabilities in the statement of financial position even though the original term was for a
period longer than 12 months and an agreement to refinance, or to reschedule payments, on a
long-term basis is completed after the reporting date and before the financial statements are
authorised for issue. Other financial liabilities due to be settled more than 12 months after the
reporting date are presented as non-current liabilities in the statement of financial position.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligations under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expired. When existing financial liabilities are replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.

2.9

Payables and accruals
Payables excluding accruals are recognised at their transaction price, excluding transaction cost, if
any, both at initial recognition and at subsequent measurement. Transaction costs are recognised as
expenditure in profit or loss as incurred. Accruals are recognised at the best estimate of the amount
payable.
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Borrowing costs
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All borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income using the
effective interest method. Borrowing costs may include interest in respect of lease liability recognised
in accordance with FRS 116.
2.11

Funds
Fund balances are restricted by outside sources are so indicated and are distinguished from
unrestricted funds allocated to specific purposes, if any, by action of the Executive Committee.
Externally restricted funds may only be utilised in accordance with the purposes for which they are
established. The Executive Committee retains full control over the use of unrestricted funds in
furtherance of the Society’s objects. Restricted funds of the Society include Care and Share Matching
Fund, Community Silver Trust Matching Fund, Capital Expenditure Fund, Patient Welfare Fund, GS
Gives Annual Giving Fund, Community Care Training Grant and President’s Challenge.

2.12

Leases
(a) The accounting policy for leases before 1 January 2019 are as follows:
When the Society is the lessee:
The Society leases office unit and copier machine under operating leases from non-related parties.
Leases where substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership are retained by the
lessors are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating lease (net of any
incentives received from the lessors) are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
Contingent rents are recognised as expense in the statement of comprehensive income when
incurred.
(b) The accounting policy for leases from 1 January 2019 are as follows:
When the Society is the lessee:
The Society applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Society recognises lease liabilities
representing the obligations to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying leased assets.
At the inception of the contract, the Society assesses if the contract contains a lease. A contract
contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Reassessment is only required when the terms and
conditions of the contract are changed.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.12

Leases (Cont’d)
(b) The accounting policy for leases from 1 January 2019 are as follows: (Cont’d)
When the Society is the lessee: (Cont’d)


Right-of-use (“ROU”) assets
The Society recognised a right-of-use asset and lease liabilities at the date which the
underlying asset is available for use. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost which
comprises the initial measurement of lease liabilities adjusted of any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date and lease incentive received. Any initial direct costs
that would not have been incurred if the lease had not been obtained are added to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use assets.
These right-of-use assets is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset
or the end of the lease term.
Right-of-use assets (except for those which meet the definition of an investment property)
are presented within “Property, plant and equipment” as disclosed in Note 7. The
right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. The accounting policy for impairment is
disclosed in Note 2.6.



Lease liabilities
The initial measurement of lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease
payments discounted using the implicit rate in the lease, if the rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Society shall use its incremental
borrowing rate.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Society uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made.
Lease payments include the following:
-

Fixed payment (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivables;
Variable lease payment that are based on an index or rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;
Amount expected to be payable under residual value guarantees;
The exercise price of a purchase option if is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
and
Payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Society
exercising that option.

For contract that contain both lease and non-lease components, the Society allocates the
consideration to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease and non-lease component. The Society has elected to not separate lease and
non-lease component for property lease and account these as one single lease component.
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2.

(b) The accounting policy for leases from 1 January 2019 are as follows: (Cont’d)
When the Society is the lessee: (Cont’d)


Lease liabilities (Cont’d)
Lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Lease
liability shall be remeasured when:
-

There is a change in future lease payments arising from changes in an index or rate;
There is a changes in the Society’s assessment of whether it will exercise an extension
option; or
There are modifications in the scope or the consideration of the lease that was not part
of the original term.

Lease liability is remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset, or
is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
The Society’s lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 12.


Short-term and low-value leases
The Society has elected to not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short-term leases that have lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option and leases of low value leases, except for sublease
arrangements. Lease payments relating to these leases are expensed to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.



Variable lease payments
Variable lease payments that are not based on an index or a rate are not included as part of
the measurement and initial recognition of the lease liability. The Society shall recognise
those lease payments in the statement of comprehensive income in the periods that
triggered those lease payments.

2.13

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Society pays fixed
contributions into separate entities such as the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”), on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Society has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The Society’s contribution to defined contribution plans are recognised as employee
compensation expense when they are due.
Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the reporting date.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.14

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is
not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefit is
probable.

2.15

Events after the reporting date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Society’s position at the reporting
date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.

3.

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements
Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Society makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.
Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Society reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on
factors such as business plans and strategies, expected level of usage and future technological
developments. It is possible that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes
in these estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned.
Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting policies
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
date of the statement of financial position, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever there is any indication that the
assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value
less cost to sell and value in use) of the assets is estimated to determine the impairment loss. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculation are those regarding the growth rates, and expected
change to selling price and direct costs during the financial year and a suitable discount rate.
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Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements (Cont’d)
Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting policies (Cont’d)
Government grants
Government grants to meet operating expenses are recognised as income in the statement of
comprehensive income on the accrual basis in the financial year these operating expenses were
incurred and there is reasonable assurance that the Society will comply with the conditions attached
to it. For certain grants, the government agencies reserve the right to withdraw, withhold or reduce
the amount of any funds approved but not yet disbursed or to call for the refund of all funds which
have been disbursed to the Society if the conditions are not met.

4.

Income tax
The Society is registered as a charity organisation under Charities Act, Chapter 37. As an approved
charity, it is exempt from income tax under Section 13(1) of the Income Tax Act.

5.

Cash and bank balances
2019
S$
Cash on hand
Cash at banks
Fixed deposits

973
812,812
1,842,050
2,655,835

2018
S$
949
1,763,873
520,927
2,285,749

Fixed deposits at the reporting date had an average maturity of 7 months (2018: 4 months) from that
date and had a weighted average effective interest rate of 1.44% (2018: 1.30%) per annum.
For the purpose of presenting the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the
following:
2019
2018
S$
S$
Cash and bank balances
Less: Fixed deposits with maturity more than 3
months

2,655,835

2,285,749

(1,122,519)
1,533,316

(106,897)
2,178,852

At the reporting date, the carrying amounts of cash and bank balances approximated their fair values.

Fiducia LLP, Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants of Singapore

Page 27 of 40

Ex tra ord i n a r y, Ever y Da y

3.

PA RKINSON SOC IE TY S IN GAP O RE

Au d i te d F i n a nci a l S ta te ments
F i na nPARKINSON
c i a l Ye a r EndSOCIETY
e d 3 1 D eSINGAPORE
c e mb e r 2 019
[UEN. S96SS0203J]
[IPC No. HEF0080/G]

[UEN. S96SS0203J]
[IPC No. HEF0080/G]

Audited Financial Statements
Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

Ex tra ord i n a r y, Ever y Da y

64

6.

Receivables, deposits and prepayment
2019
S$
Grant receivable
Interest receivable
Prepayment
Other receivable
Security deposits

2018
S$

9,076
6,329
3,094
1,350
909
20,758

51,529
841
1,972
0
909
55,251

At the reporting date, the carrying amounts of receivables and deposits approximated their fair values.
7.

Property, plant and equipment

2019
At cost
Furniture and fittings
Gym equipment
Leasehold
improvement
Right-of-use assets –
copier machine

Accumulated
depreciation
Furniture and fittings
Gym equipment
Leasehold
improvement
Right-of-use assets –
copier machine

Carrying Amount
Furniture and fittings
Gym equipment
Leasehold
improvement
Right-of-use assets –
copier machine

Balance at
01.01.2019
S$

Effect of
adopting FRS
116 Leases
S$

Balance at
01.01.2019
(restated)
S$

Balance at
31.12.2019
S$

Additions
S$

43,332
70,422

0
0

43,332
70,422

18,891
1,894

62,223
72,316

580,051

0

580,051

0

580,051

0
693,805

6,792
6,792

6,792
700,597

0
20,785

6,792
721,382

Balance at
01.01.2019
S$

Effect of
adopting FRS
116 Leases
S$

Balance at
01.01.2019
(restated)
S$

Additions
S$

Balance at
31.12.2019
S$

41,437
70,422

0
0

41,437
70,422

2,749
0

44,186
70,422

347,485

0

347,485

58,005

405,490

0
459,344

2,037
2,037

2,037
461,381

1,359
62,113

3,396
523,494

Balance at
01.01.2019
S$

Balance at
31.12.2019
S$

1,895
0

18,037
1,894

232,566

174,561

0
234,461

3,396
197,888
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Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

2018
At cost
Furniture and fittings
Gym equipment
Leasehold improvement

Accumulated depreciation
Furniture and fittings
Gym equipment
Leasehold improvement

Net carrying amount
Furniture and fittings
Gym equipment
Leasehold improvement

Balance at
01.01.2018
S$
43,332
70,422
580,051
693,805
Balance at
01.01.2018
S$

Balance at
31.12.2018
S$

Additions
S$
0
0
0
0
Depreciation
charge
S$

39,038
70,422
289,479
398,939

2,399
0
58,006
60,405

Balance at
01.01.2018
S$

43,332
70,422
580,051
693,805
Balance at
31.12.2018
S$
41,437
70,422
347,485
459,344
Balance at
31.12.2018
S$

4,294
0
290,572
294,866

1,895
0
232,566
234,461

The following property, plant and equipment were purchased through the Care and Share Matching
Fund as disclosed in Note 14.

Furniture and fittings
Cost
Beginning of financial year
Additions
End of financial year

2019
S$

2018
S$

4,596
2,597
7,193

4,596
0
4,596

Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of financial year
Depreciation charge
End of financial year

2,701
1,844
4,545

1,169
1,532
2,701

Carrying amount

2,648

1,895

Fiducia LLP, Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants of Singapore

Page 29 of 40

Ex tra ord i n a r y, Ever y Da y

7.

PA RKINSON SOC IE TY S IN GAP O RE
[UEN. S96SS0203J]
[IPC No. HEF0080/G]

Au d i te d F i n a nci a l S ta te ments
F i na nPARKINSON
c i a l Ye a r EndSOCIETY
e d 3 1 D eSINGAPORE
c e mb e r 2 019
[UEN. S96SS0203J]
[IPC No. HEF0080/G]
Audited Financial Statements
Financial Year Ended 31 December 2019

Ex tra ord i n a r y, Ever y Da y

66

8.

Leases – The Society as a lessee
Nature of the Society’s leasing activities
Office unit
Copier machine
The Society leases copier machine and office for the purpose of its operations.
(a)

Carrying amount
Right-of-use (“ROU”) assets classified within Property, plant and equipment
31.12.2019
S$
Copier machine

(b)

3,396

Depreciation charged during the financial year

4,755
2019
S$
1,359

Copier machine
(c)

01.01.2019
S$

Interest expense on lease liabilities

2019
S$

Copier machine
(d)

221

Lease expenses not capitalised in lease liabilities

2019
S$

Short term lease expense - Office unit

13,135

(e) Total cash outflow for all the leases in 2019 was $1,541.
9.

Payables and accruals
2019
S$
Accruals
CPF payable
Contract liabilities
MOH subvention fund received in advance

10,684
13,539
1,912
0
26,135

2018
S$
12,512
10,107
4,064
19,321
46,004

Contract liabilities relate to the Society’s outstanding performance obligation to provide services to
customers for which the Society has received the advances. Contract liabilities will be recognised as
programme income upon service rendered.
At the reporting date, the carrying amounts of payables and accruals are approximated their fair values.
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Deferred capital grant
2019
S$

Cost
Beginning and end of financial year
Accumulated amortisation
Beginning of financial year
Amortisation for the year
End of financial year
Net carrying amount at end of the financial
year
Current
Non-current

2018
S$

524,668

524,668

325,212
44,063
369,275

274,517
50,695
325,212

43,981
111,412
155,393

44,063
155,393
199,456

The deferred capital grant is represented by leasehold improvement work under Living Hope Activity
Centre project granted by Tote Board Community Healthcare Fund and will be amortised subsequently
in the statement of comprehensive income for purchase of Property, plant and equipment over the
period necessary to match income and expenditure on a systematic basis
11.

Deferred grant
Note
14

Community Silver Trust Matching Fund
12.

2019
S$

2018
S$

177,141

0

Lease liabilities
2019
S$
Current
Non-current

2018
S$

1,391
2,227
3,618

0
0
0

A reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as follows:

Liabilities
- current
- non-current

01.01.2019
S$
1,320
3,618
4,938

Cash
flows
S$

Non-cash changes
Accretion
of interests
Other
S$
S$

(1,541)
0
(1,541)
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31.12.2019
S$

1,391
(1,391)
0

1,391
2,227
3,618
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13.

Unrestricted Fund
General fund
Funds are available for use at the discretion of the Executive Committee in furtherance of the Society’s
objective.

14.

Restricted Funds
Restricted funds comprise:
Patient Welfare Fund
Patient Welfare Fund was set up to provide financial assistance to needy patients. The fund is
administered by the Patient Welfare sub-committee.
Movement of this fund is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Less: Disbursement
Balance at end of the financial year

2019
S$
19,863
(3,325)
16,538

2018
S$
21,491
(1,628)
19,863

Net assets of Patient Welfare Fund are as follows:
2019
S$

2018
S$

Total Patient Welfare Fund

16,538

19,863

Represented by:
Cash and bank balances

16,538

19,863

Capital Expenditure Fund
Capital Expenditure Fund was set up by the Executive Committee for future capital replacement and
expansion of the Society.
Net assets of Capital Expenditure Fund are as follows:

2019
S$

2018
S$

Total Capital Expenditure Fund

200,000

200,000

Represented by:
Cash and bank balances

200,000

200,000
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Restricted Funds (Cont’d)
Restricted funds comprise: (Cont’d)
Care and Share Matching Fund
Care and Share Grant is a grant from Ministry of Social and Family Development (“MSF”), based on
qualifying donations, to develop the charitable agency’s capabilities and capacity in the provision of
social services and programmes for its beneficiaries. The unused funds for projects that are withdrawn
or terminated prematurely may be clawed back if the new proposed projects were not being approved
by MSF. NCSS has approved the extension of time for grant utilisation to 31 March 2021 on 18 May
2018.
Movement of this fund is as follows:

2019
S$

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Add: Grant received
Less: Disbursement
Balance at end of the financial year

25,225
0
(22,577)
2,648

2018
S$
(9,040)
66,392
(32,127)
25,225

The net assets of the Care and Share Matching fund are as follows:
Note
Total Care and Share Matching Fund
Represented by:
Cash and bank balances
Property, plant and equipment

7

2019
S$

2018
S$

2,648

25,225

0
2,648
2,648

23,330
1,895
25,225

Community Silver Trust Matching Fund (CST)
CST is a dollar-for-dollar donation matching grant provided by the Government to enhance the
services of voluntary welfare organisations in the intermediate and long-term care (“ILTC”) sector.
CST is managed by Ministry of Health and administered by the Agency for Integrated Care (“AIC”).
Movement of this fund is as follows:

Note

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Add: grant received
Less: Disbursement
Reclassified to deferred grant in statement of
financial position
Balance at end of the financial year

11
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2019
S$

2018
S$

39,882
332,870
(195,611)
177,141

128,675
0
(88,793)
39,882

(177,141)
0

0
39,882
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14.

Restricted Funds (Cont’d)
Restricted funds comprise: (Cont’d)
Community Silver Trust Matching Fund (CST) (Cont’d)
Net assets of Community Silver Trust Matching Fund are as follows:
Note

2019
S$
0

Total Community Silver Trust Matching Fund

Represented by:
Cash and bank balances
Deferred grant
Cash and bank balances

2018
S$

11

177,141
(177,141)
0

39,882

39,882
0
39,882

GS Gives Annual Giving Fund
GS Gives Annual Giving fund is a grant from GoldmanSachs Gives, to support of instructors' fees for
teaching activity classes to people with Parkinson Society Singapore.
Movement of this fund is as follows:

2019
S$

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Add: Grant received
Less: Disbursement
Balance at end of the financial year

2018
S$

0
13,844
(13,844)
0

0
0
0
0

Community Care Training Grant
Community Care Training Grant is a grant from Agency for Integrated Care (''AIC''), to develop the
manpower capabilities of Community Care staff and provide course fee subsidy to Community Care
organisations.
Movement of this fund is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Add: Grant received
Less: Disbursement
Less: Transfer to general fund
Balance at end of the financial year

Note

(a)

2019
S$

2018
S$

0
4,889
(1,759)
(3,130)
0

0
0
0
0
0

(a) The transfer from Community Care Training Grant, restricted funds to general fund was to
reimburse expenses paid for by the general fund in 2018.
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Restricted Funds (Cont’d)
Restricted funds comprise: (Cont’d)
President's Challenge Fund
President’s Challenge is a movement supported by the kindness and generosity of the people from all
walks of life, regardless of culture, religion or family background, to help those less fortunate. The
main bodies involved in the organisation and administration of President's Challenge are the
President's Office, Ministry of Social and Family Development (“MSF”) and National Council of Social
Service (“NCSS”). The Society has been selected as one of the beneficiaries for the funding of its
manpower costs by NCSS. This fund has to be utilised within 2 years upon receipt of the monies, or
risk being revoked.
Movement of this fund is as follows:

2019
S$

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Add: Grant received
Less: Disbursement
Balance at end of the financial year

15.

2018
S$

0
205,000
(205,000)
0

0
0
0
0

Tax deductible receipts
Tax deductible receipts issued by the Society for donations received during the financial year,
pursuant to its Institutions of a Public Character (“IPC”) status, are recorded as follows:
Note
Statement of Comprehensive Income:
General fund:
- Fundraising events – tax deductible donations
- Donations-tax deductible
Total

16

2019
S$

22,295
101,262
123,557

2018
S$

287,929
33,218
321,147

During the financial year, the Society held fundraising events namely, I Run for Parkinson Singapore
Marathon 2019, Move To Beat Parkinson 2019 and Step Up 4 Parkinson 2019.
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16.

Fundraising events

Income
Donations – tax deductible
Donations – non-tax deductible
Expenditures
Catering and refreshments
Event expenses
Insurance expenses
Miscellaneous
Printing and stationery
Transport expenses
Net income from fund raising appeal
Percentage of fund raising expenses over income
from fund raising event
17.

2019
S$

2018
S$

22,295
1,867
24,162

287,929
12,465
300,394

278
1,647
54
0
280
0
2,259

47
51,608
2,408
69
596
16
54,744

21,903

245,650

9%

18%

Staff costs
Included in the expenses expended are the following staff costs:
2019
S$
Salaries, bonus and AWS
CPF and SDL contributions
Staff development and training
Staff benefits

18.

373,789
53,971
4,969
764
433,493

2018
S$
300,695
39,225
3,736
593
344,249

Key management personnel compensation
Key personnel comprised of members of the Executive Committee and senior management of the
Society. Members of the Executive Committee are volunteers and receive no monetary remuneration
for their contribution.
There is no employee with emolument above S$100,000. The remuneration of key management
personnel is determined by the Executive Committee.
There are no significant related party transactions during the current and previous financial year.
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Operating lease commitments
Where the Society is the lessee
The Society leases copier machine under non-cancellable operating lease agreement.
The future minimum lease payables under operating leases contracted for at the reporting date but
not recognised as liabilities, are as follows:
2019
S$
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

2018
S$
0
0
0

1,541
3,852
5,393

As disclosed in Note 2.1, the Society has adopted FRS 116 Leases on 1 January 2019. These lease
payments have been recognised as ROU assets and lease liabilities on the statement of financial
positions as at 31 December 2019.
20.

Management of conflict of interest
There is no paid staff on the Society’s Executive Committee.
Executive Committee members are required to disclose any interest that they may have, whether
directly or indirectly, that the Society may enter into or in any organisations that the Society has
dealings with or is considering dealing with; and any personal interest accruing to him as one of the
Society’s supplier, user of services or beneficiary. Should there be any potential conflict of interest,
the affected Executive Committee member may not vote on the issue that was the subject matter of
the disclosure. Detailed minutes will be taken on the disclosure as well as the basis for arriving at the
final decision in relation to the issue at stake.

21.

Reserve position and policy
The Society’s reserve position for financial year ended 31 December 2019 is as follows:

A
B
C
D

Unrestricted Funds
Accumulated general funds
Restricted Fund
Total Funds
Total Annual Operating Expenditure
Ratio of Funds to Annual Operating Expenditure (A/D)

2019
S$’000
2,293

2018
S$’000
2,045

219
2,512
767
2.99

285
2,330
661
3.09

Increase/
(decrease)
%
12
(23)
8
16

Reference:
C. Total Funds include unrestricted and restricted funds.
D. Total Annual Operating Expenditure includes expenses related to Cost of Generating Funds, Cost of Charitable
Activities and Governance and Other Administrative Costs.

The reserve policy of the Society is to hold reserves of up to 5 times (2018: 5 times) over annual
operating expenses.
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22.

Financial risk management
The Society is primarily funded by grants from Ministries, donations, fund raising activities, and
income from its members. The Society’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks primarily
liquidity risk, credit risk and interest rate risk.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk reflects the risk that the Society will have insufficient resources to meet its financial
liabilities as and when they fall due.
The Society is primarily funded by the Ministry of Health’s grants and donations. The Society monitors
its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and bank balances deemed adequate by the Executive
Committee to finance the Society’s activities and to mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
The Executive Committee ensures that the Society has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected
operational expenses.
The financial liabilities of the Society due within one year from the reporting date are:

2019
Financial liabilities, at amortised cost
Payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

2018
Financial liabilities, at amortised cost
Payables and accruals

Within one
year
S$
24,223
1,541
25,764

Within one
year
S$
41,940

Later than one
year but not
later than five
years
S$
0
2,311
2,311
Later than one
year but not
later than five
years
S$
0

Total
S$
24,223
3,852
28,075

Total
S$
41,940

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Society.
The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances, receivables and deposits represent the Society’s
maximum exposure to credit risks in relation to financial assets. No other financial assets carry a
significant exposure to credit risk. The Society has policies in place to ensure that transactions are
entered into only with counter parties that are of acceptable credit quality. Cash and bank balances
are placed with reputable licensed financial institutions.
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Financial risk management (Cont’d)
Interest rate risk
Changes in interest rates do not have a material impact on the Society as it does not have any
interest-bearing liabilities. The following table sets out the carrying amount, by maturity, of the
Society’s financial instruments, that are exposed to interest rate risk.
2019
S$

2018
S$

Within one year – fixed rates
Financial assets
Fixed deposits

1,842,050

520,927

The responsibility for managing the above risks is vested in the Executive Committee.
23.

Financial instruments
The financial assets and liabilities of the Society as at the end of financial year are as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and bank balances
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayment)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Payables and accruals (excluding contract liabilities)
Lease liabilities

24.

2019
S$

2018
S$

2,655,835
17,664
2,673,499

2,285,749
53,279
2,339,028

24,223
3,618
27,841

41,940
0
41,940

Fair value
The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities recorded in the financial statements of the
Society approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature.
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities approximate their fair values as they are subject to interest
rates close to market rate of interests for similar arrangements with financial institution.

25.

Prior year adjustments
In the previous financial year, certain adjustments have been made by separately ring-fencing
restricted funds in order to enhance comparability with current year’s financial statements in
compliance to the Societies Act, Chapter 311 (the “Societies Act”), the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and
Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”). The adjustments were made to reconcile the
restricted funds, namely, Care and Share Fund and Community Silver Trust Fund to the respective
utilisation reports due to timing differences.
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26.

Events after the reporting period
An outbreak of COVID-19 (Coronavirus Disease 2019) was reported in China on 31 December 2019.
Since then, this outbreak has developed into a pandemic. At the date of the financial statements, the
COVID-19 virus has spread to most countries in the world including Singapore. The Society operates
in the Singapore environment, and as such, is affected by the Government’s response and actions
taken to contain this outbreak.
The Society is highly encouraged by the support measures and actions introduced by the Singapore
Government to help cushion any averse cash flows impact on the Society.
However, given the unpredictability associated with the COVID-19 outbreak on public health and the
economy, as well as any further responsive and contingency measures (for possible second and third
waves, etc.) that may be put in place by the Government and private sector entities, the potential
financial impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on the Society’s 2020 financial statements cannot be
reasonably ascertained or quantified at this juncture.

27.

Authorisation of financial statements
These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the Executive Committee on
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